Public Document Pack

SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM
Thursday 9 December 2021 at 7.00pm
Hollingworth (Room 108ABC), First Floor, Number One
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

AGENDA
1.

Welcome, Introductions, Apologies and Code of Conduct

2.

TBA Update - Representatives from ESG Trading Limited
will be attending to provide an update

3.

Approval of the minutes of the Spotland & Falinge Area
Forum meeting held on Thursday 5 March 2020

4.

Greater Manchester Police

5.

Date and time of the next meeting
Thursday 3 March 2022 at 7pm
Spotland Methodist Church

Agenda Item 1
Rochdale Township Area Forums
Code of Conduct
It is established by and for the Rochdale Township Area Forums that the following
code of conduct will govern the behaviour of their members. The code of conduct will
be enforced by the Chair of this meeting.
Conduct at meetings
Members will at all times observe accepted practice while taking part in discussions
to:
• Be courteous to each other and support and assist other members in finding
the best possible solution to problems being discussed
• Allow each other the opportunity to speak and comment
• Attempt as far as possible to stick to the agenda and assist each other to
reach effective conclusions
• Operate within the constitution where applicable
• Aggression, violence, threats, harassment, intimidation and other disruptive
behaviour in the forum will not be tolerated
• The term ‘members’ applies to all those present at the meeting
Confidentiality
• Members will refrain from mentioning specific individual cases which may
cause embarrassment or identification of an individual
• Any information or item shared that is of a confidential nature will not be
disclosed to anyone else apart from members of the Forum in order to allow
the business of the meeting to proceed.
Dignity at meetings
• All those who attend Forum meetings have the right to be treated with dignity
and respect regardless of their race, colour, ethnic or national origin,
nationality, gender, marital status, age, sexuality, religion or any other matter
which causes people to be discriminated against
• The meeting will do all that is in its power to oppose all forms of harassment
and bullying
Individual Members
• Should disclose any personal interest that they consider may affect or
influence their approach to the matter being discussed
• Must show respect in all their dealings by observing reasonable standards
and courtesy, and by not seeking to take unfair advantage by virtue of their
position
Political Affiliation
• Even though individual members may be affiliated to/or be members of a
political party, they may not represent a political party in their role as
individual members of this Forum
• Elected Members attending meetings outside the ward they represent may be
allowed to speak, at the discretion of the Chair.
Breach of Code of Conduct
• If anyone attending the Forum meeting does not abide by the code of
conduct, the Chair will have the discretion to decide on an appropriate course
of action. The Chair may either issue a warning, ask the person to withdraw
from a particular agenda item or exclude that person from the meeting.
• Where a person is asked to leave a meeting, the Chair will have the discretion
to decide whether or not that person is welcome to attend future meetings.
• The Chair at his/her discretion, may close the meeting if he/she deems it
necessary

Page 2

Agenda Item 3
SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 5 March 2020
PRESENT: Councillors Cocks, Massey and Rana and 21 members of the public.
OFFICERS: PC Jones, PCSO Robinson, L. Wardle (Enforcement Officer) and G.
Finch (Township & Engagement Officer)
WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
160
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting and reminded members of the need to adhere
to the Code of Conduct for the duration of the meeting.
GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE INCLUDING PACT MEETING
161
PC Jones and PCSO Robinson attended the meeting for this item and informed the
Forum of the following issues:
1. Theft from motor vehicle – Since the last Area Forum crime prevention patrol
and awareness advice has continued in the affected areas due to a
successful reduction of theft from vehicles. However the Ward has suffered
from three theft’s from vehicles which involved works vans and numerous
tools being taken.
2. Residential burglary – GMP have recently been working with Rochdale
Council’s Burglary Crime Prevention Team in carrying out home visits in the
areas affected by burglary, for example Falinge Road, Spotland Road and the
Brotherod Estate.
Reported burglaries during January was 10; February 2 and March 0
If anyone would like a crime prevention home visit please contact PCSO
Robinson.
3. Robbery on Greave – At the last meeting the Forum was informed of two taxi
drivers that had been robbed on the Greave Estate. A male has been arrested
who has now pleaded guilty and is on remand and awaiting sentence at
Crown Court on the 24 March.
4. Bogus callers – Ravendale Close and Martin Lane areas have experienced
bogus callers claiming to be from United Utilities and charity workers.
Patrols are in place at the times reported that the bogus callers have been in
the vicinity.
Forum members were reminded to remain vigilant.
5. Anti-social behaviour
The areas around Spotland Methodist Church and Ravendale Close have
seen a downturn in anti-social behaviour related incidents. Rooley Moor Road
/ Daniel Fold Junction and Denehurst Park are currently being monitored.

Page 3

6. Vehicles seized – numerous vehicles have been seized in the Ward for a
variety of reasons.
7. Speeding concerns throughout Spotland area – Since the last forum two
Neighbourhood Speed Watch schemes have been undertaken on Rooley
Moor Road and Prickshaw Village. More of these schemes will be organised
and anyone who would like to assist should contact PCSO Robinson.
The Neighbourhood Policing Team are also investigating how they can
acquire an official speed gun.
8. Drugs – A suspected drug dealer was arrested on Cutgate Road which
resulted in a significant quantity of cash and drugs being recovered.
A cannabis farm has also been recently discovered in the Ward.
In both the above cases information from the public was vital in carrying out
these arrests.
High visibility patrols are being conducted by the Neighbourhood Policing
Team at drug dealing hotspots. Intelligence gathering also continues.
The following issues were raised by residents:
-

A lock is required for the gate on Knacks Lane

-

The mosquito recently installed is working.

-

In response to a question it was confirmed that excessive exhaust noise is an
offence.

-

In response to a question it was stated that vehicles idling is not an offence.

-

It was reported that a rider of a trials bike is causing anti-social behaviour on
the Spotland Estate.

-

In response to a question it was confirmed that it is illegal for child scooters to
travel over 13 mph.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING/MATTERS ARISING/UPDATES
162
The minutes of the Area Forum meeting held on Thursday 9 January 2020 were
approved as a correct record.
Matters arising / updates included:
1. The Forum agreed to Roger Heap joining the Forum’s Sub-Group.
2. The Sub-Group had agreed to fund the installation of bollards adjacent to The
Little Day Nursery – cost £530
3. The installation of bollards at the junction of College Road / Holmes Street is
unlikely to go ahead.

Page 4

4. The application in relation to the improvement of a gravel path from
Caldershaw Road to Caldershaw Brook pathway will be going to the next
Rochdale North Township Committee to seek funding.
5. The damaged traffic sign at the junction of Ings Lane / Phoenix Street has
been reported.
6. The Traffic Regulation Order for Rooley Moor Road was agreed at Rochdale
North Township Committee on the 16 January 2020.
7. The concerns raised regarding the poor lighting in the Meanwood / Churchill
Street area has been reported.
8. A resident reported that the (old) speed activation sign on Rooley Moor Road
is not working.
9. Concerns were raised about the cost of the newly installed speed activation
sign on Rooley Moor Road. It was also asked if the sign recorded any data.
This would be investigated.
10. Concerns were raised about footpath safety on Preston Street. A site visit
would be undertaken.
11. A general discussion took place in connection to a response received from
Rochdale Council concerning the TBA site. The response was as follows and
was in reply to concerns raised by a resident:
‘All concerns regarding the site and the riverbank stability and further erosion
have been passed onto the site owner’s representatives. Photographs
provided by residents have also been passed on. The Council has again
asked that the site owner’s representatives confirm what action is being taken
to deal with this issue.
Due to the continued concerns being raised about riverbank erosion and the
lack of response from the site owners, the Council is now looking at
conducting some targeted investigation to understand and evidence the risk
this erosion is having on the river quality and asbestos release to atmosphere.
The Council has undertaken site visits and the targeted investigation is being
scoped and planned. We will obviously make the results of all sampling and
testing publicly available after appropriate analysis and interpretation.
Queries have been raised as to whether the Council owns the riverbank
where the erosion is of greatest concern. Land ownership records have been
checked and the land on the eastern side of the bank of the River Spodden is
entirely within the curtilage of the TBA site (as is the majority of the
embankment on the western side of the River Spodden with exception of a
small stretch near to the weir). As such the Council believes the areas of
erosion concerns are within private land ownership.’
The general tone of the discussion was one of concern with reference being
made to the following:
‘The state of the site and erosion of the banking’

Page 5

‘The recent prosecution of a company by the Environment Agency for illegal
tipping on the site’
‘Updates are required on the Council’s web page regarding the TBA site’
‘More rubbish is being tipped’
‘Can the Council undertake work and charge the owners?’
‘What is the Environment Agency’s role in this?’
‘Is there an Emergency Plan in place?’
‘Water course contamination’
MEMBERS/WARD FUNDS
163
The Forum was informed that all Members / Ward Funds for 2019/20 had been
allocated and that it would possibly be June before 2020/21 budgets are known.
A list of the projects supported from Ward Funds during 2019/20 had been circulated
prior to the meeting. However the list is as follows:
Rooley Moor Road to Catley Lane Head Speed Survey
Donald Clarke Memorial Concert
Stoney Hill Community Wildlife Area Information Board
Rooley Moor Road Litter Bins
Falinge Road Footway Improvement
Clement Royds Street Grit Bin
Rooley Moor Road Grit Bin
Edenfield Road / Churchill Street Bollards
COUNCILLOR UPDATES/NEWS
164
The following updates were provided:
Councillor Massey’s newsletter can be accessed via the link below
Councillor Rana informed the forum that he has recently been involved in a number
of financial management related initiatives aimed at looking at the possibility of
freezing Council Tax in the future and attempts to change the formula used by
Government when allocating funding.
Councillor Rana also encouraged residents to notify him of projects they would like to
see in the Ward.
Councillor Cocks informed the forum:
1. That this would be her last forum as a Ward Councillor.

Page 6

2. That she had been looking at safety concerns at Cutgate steps.
3. Of a scam roofer operating in the area.
4. That she had been involved in climate emergency plan work and a giving up
smoking initiative.
5. That a great deal of positive work is going on in the Ward
The Chair of the Forum thanked Councillor Cocks for her hard work and commitment
to the Ward.
OPEN FORUM - AN OPPORTUNITY FOR LOCAL RESIDENTS TO COMMENT ON
ISSUES IN THE WARD
165
The following issues were raised:
1. A resident commented that a number of scrapped vehicles are at the rear of
India Lounge on Spotland Road.
2. A resident thanked the Forum for the recent installation of litter bins and a grit
bin in the Rooley Moor Road area and asked when the speed survey would
be undertaken on Rooley Moor Road.
In response it was explained that all the funding has been agreed for the
speed survey and we are waiting for Transport for Greater Manchester to
undertake the work.
It was also commented that the footpath that runs along Rooley Moor Road to
Catley Lane Head is in poor condition.
3. A resident informed the Forum:
-

Of a scam email professing to be from the Post Office being in
circulation.

–

That the gates at Falinge Park will be closed for four weeks from the 16
March.

–

A number of Yorkshire flags are surplus to requirements at Falinge
Park.

-

That a number of events over the year will be run at Falinge Park.

4. A resident commented that clarification was required with regard to the
working relationship with Environmental Management when completing
environmental projects.
DATES AND TIMES OF THE NEXT MEETINGS
166
The next Area Forum meeting will take place at Falinge Park Community Hub on
Thursday 25 June 2020, commencing 7pm.

Page 7

